PLANNING COMMITTEE

At a Meeting of the Planning Committee held in the Council Chamber, Clydebank Town Hall, Dumbarton Road, Clydebank on Wednesday, 27 February 2019 at 10.00 a.m.

Present: Bailie Denis Agnew and Councillors Jim Brown, Gail Casey,

Karen Conaghan, Diane Docherty, Marie McNair, John Mooney

and Lawrence O'Neill.

Attending: Peter Hessett, Strategic Lead – Regulatory; Pamela Clifford,

Planning, Building Standards and Environmental Health

Manager; Bernard Darroch, Lead Planning Officer; John Walker, Assistant Engineering Officer (Roads); Nigel Ettles, Section Head – Litigation and Craig Stewart, Committee Officer.

Apologies: Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillors

Jim Finn and Douglas McAllister.

Councillor Diane Docherty in the Chair

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

It was noted that there were no declarations of interest in any of the items of business on the agenda.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of Meeting of the Planning Committee held on 19 December 2018 were submitted and approved as a correct record.

OPEN FORUM

The Committee noted that no open forum questions had been submitted by members of the public.

PLANNING APPLICATION

A report was submitted by the Strategic Lead – Regulatory in respect of the following planning application:-

DC18/250 – Erection of residential development comprising 6 flats, 2 three storey town houses and associated parking and landscaping on Main Street, Bonhill, Alexandria by Mr John Ferrier.

Reference was made to a site visit which had been undertaken in respect of the above application. The Planning, Building Standards and Environmental Health Manager was heard in further explanation of the report.

The Chair invited Ms Janice Ross, Bonhill and Dalmonach Community Council, objector, to address the Committee. Ms Ross was heard in respect of the Community Council's representations in regard to the application.

The Chair then invited Mr John Ferrier, applicant, to address the Committee.

After discussion and having heard the Planning, Building Standards and Environmental Health Manager in answer to a Member's question, the Committee agreed that it was minded to grant planning permission and that authority be delegated to the Planning, Building Standards and Environmental Health Manager to issue the decision subject to the conditions set out in Section 9 of the report, as detailed within Appendix 1 hereto, and to the satisfactory conclusion of a legal agreement or other suitable mechanism to secure the payment of a contribution towards the green network enhancements.

PLANNING PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2017-18

A report was submitted by the Strategic Lead – Regulatory informing of the recent comments received from the Scottish Government and the peer review regarding the Planning Performance Framework submitted by the Council for 2017-18.

After discussion and having heard the Planning, Building Standards and Environmental Health Manager in further explanation of the report and in answer to Members' questions, the Committee agreed to note the content of the report and the comments received from the Scottish Government and peer reviewer.

VALEDICTORY - BERNARD DARROCH

Councillor Docherty, Chair, informed the Committee that this was the last meeting which Mr Bernard Darroch, Lead Planning Officer, would attend as he was moving to a new post within North Lanarkshire Council.

On behalf of the Committee, Councillor Docherty thanked Mr Darroch for all his hard work, dedication and commitment over 16 years and wished him well in his new role. All of the other Members present thanked Mr Darroch and wished him good luck for the future. In response, Mr Darroch thanked everyone for their kind words and advised that he had enjoyed his time working for West Dunbartonshire Council.

The meeting closed at 10.30 a.m.

DC18/250 – Erection of residential development comprising 6 flats, 2 three storey town houses and associated parking and landscaping on Main Street, Bonhill, Alexandria by Mr John Ferrier.

Minded to GRANT planning permission and that authority be delegated to the Planning, Building Standards and Environmental Health Manager to issue the decision subject to the following conditions and to the satisfactory conclusion of a legal agreement or other suitable mechanism to secure the payment of a contribution towards the green network enhancements:-

- 1. Exact details and specifications of all proposed external materials shall be submitted for the written approval of the Planning Authority prior to any work commencing on site and the development shall thereafter be completed in accordance with the approved details. The external materials to be submitted shall include details of the facing brick to be used on the external walls and the roof covering. No render shall be used within this development.
- 2. Prior to the commencement of works, full details of all hard surfaces shall be submitted for the further written approval of the Planning Authority and the development shall thereafter be completed in accordance with the approved details.
- 3. Prior to the commencement of works, full details of the design and location of all walls and fences to be erected on site shall be submitted for the further written approval of the Planning Authority and the development shall thereafter be completed in accordance with the approved details.
- 4. Prior to the commencement of development details of the design and location of the bin stores, cycle storage and lighting shall be submitted for the further written approval of the Planning Authority and the development shall thereafter be completed in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any of the approved properties, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority.
- 5. No house/flatted unit shall be occupied until the vehicle parking spaces associated with that house/flatted unit have been provided within the site in accordance with the approved plans. The spaces shall thereafter be kept available for parking at all times.
- 6. Prior to the commencement of development full details of the foul and surface water drainage system shall be submitted for the written approval of the Planning Authority. The drainage system shall incorporate the principles of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems within its design, and thereafter shall be implemented prior to the occupation of any of the residential properties.

- 7. A landscaping scheme for the site shall be submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority prior to commencement of development on site and shall be implemented not later than the next appropriate planting season after occupation of the first property. The landscaping shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with these details.
- 8. The presence of any previously unsuspected or unencountered contamination that becomes evident during the development of the site shall be brought to the attention of the Planning Authority within one week. At this stage, if requested, a comprehensive contaminated land investigation shall be carried out and any remedial actions shall be implemented within a timescale agreed with the Planning Authority.
- 9. During the period of construction, all works (including piling and deliveries) and ancillary operations which are audible at the site boundary, or at such other places that may be agreed with by the Planning Authority shall be carried out between 8am and 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am to 1pm on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Public Holidays.
- 10. No piling works shall be carried out until a method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. This statement shall include an assessment of the impact of the piling on surrounding properties, taking into account the guidance contained in BS 6472:1984 'Evaluation of Human Response to Vibration in Buildings'. It shall detail any procedures which are proposed to minimise the impact of noise and vibration on the occupants of surrounding properties. The statement shall be prepared by a suitably qualified person, and the piling works shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved method statement.
- 11. Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Planning Authority, no development shall commence on site until such time as a scheme for the control and mitigation of dust shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The scheme shall identify likely sources of dust arising from the development or its construction, and shall identify measures to prevent or limit the occurrence and impact of such dust. The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented fully prior to any of the identified dust generating activities commencing on site and shall be maintained thereafter, unless otherwise approved by the Planning Authority.
- 12. No development shall commence on site until such time as a noise control method statement for the construction period has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. This statement shall identify likely sources of noise (including specific noisy operations and items of plant/machinery), the anticipated duration of any particularly noisy phases of the construction works, and details of the proposed means of limiting the impact of these noise sources upon nearby residential properties and other noise sensitive properties. The construction works shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved method statement unless otherwise approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

13. No development shall take place within the development site until the developer has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological works in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant, agreed with the West of Scotland Archaeology Service and approved by the Planning Authority. Thereafter the developer shall ensure that the programme of archaeological works is fully implemented and that all recording and recovery of archaeological resources within the development site is undertaken.